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BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Forts
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Scrip Code: 973535

Subject: Annual Report of the Company for Financial Year 2021-22 alongwith Notice of
Annual General Meeting.

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
applicable statutory provisions, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Report of the Company for
Financial Year 2021-22 alongwith Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
scheduled to be held on 30t July 2022.

Annual Report alongwith Notice of the Annual General Meeting is available on the Company's website
www.gpel.com.

Kindly take the above information on record.

For GR Phagwara Expressway Limited

Heena Talesara

Company Secretary \
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a PE L GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

— NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
“Notice is hereby given that the 6™ (Sixth) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of GR
Phagwara Expressway Limited (“the Company”) will be held on 30™ July 2022 at 10:00AM at Registered
Office of the Company at GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector No. 11, Udaipur-313001, Rajasthan to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31%
March 2022 together with the Report of Auditors and Board of Directors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Varun Bhasin (DIN: 03262761), who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

3. Re-appointment of M/s JLN US & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101543W) as Statutory Auditors
of the Company.
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), M/s JLN US &
Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101543W) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of 4 (four) consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of the 10™ (Tenth) Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2026, at such
remuneration as may be mutually decided between the Auditors and the Directors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

4. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), if any, consent of the
members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded for ratification of remuneration of Rs. 5,000
(Rupees Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of actual out of pocket
expenses, payable to M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati and Co., Cost Accountants, who were appointed by the
Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct Cost Audit of the Company as prescribed under the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014, for the financial year 2022-23.”

5. Appointment of Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN: 09307480) as Director of the Company.
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 read with Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“the Rules”) and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force), if any, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of
Mr. Varun Bhasin (DIN: 09307480) as Director of the Company.”

By order of the Board

Date: 05.07.2022
Place: Udaipur

Heena Talesara
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A42655

REGISTERED OFFICE : GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector-11, Udaipur-313 002 (Rajasthan)
Ph.:+91-294-2487370, 2483033, Email : info@grinfra.com, Website : www.grinfra.com
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“THE MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT ANY OTHER PERSON AS HIS / HER PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is appended with admission slip.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of
the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital
of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

2. Any documents and papers as referred to in this notice and as required by the Companies Act, 2013 shall be available for
inspection between 11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. on all working days at the registered office of the Company and same shall
also be so available during the meeting.

3. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the special business to be transacted at
the Meeting is annexed hereto.

4. Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the meeting are provided in the “Annexure-I” to this notice.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 4

The Board has approved the appointment of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of
the Company, for the financial year ending 31%* March 2023 at a remuneration of Rs. 5000/- plus applicable
taxes and actual out-of-pocket expenses. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors approved by the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the members of the
Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at
Item No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial
year ending 31 March 2023.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the
members.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

ITEM NO. 5

Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN: 09307480), was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, on 01% December 2021. The term of his office expires on the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, he has offered himself for his appointment as Director.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval by the members.

None of the Directors except Mr. Kuldeep Jain himself / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Details of Directors seeking appointment at the meeting are provided in the “Annexure-1” to this notice.
By order of the Board

Date: 05.07.2022 [ \“| " Heena Talesara

Place: Udaipur { =\ : Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A42655



Annexure - |

Information of the Director seeking appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to
Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the ICSI) as on date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting is as under:

Name and DIN

Mr. Varun Bhasin, DIN: 03262761

Mr. Kuldeep Jain, DIN:09307480

Date of Birth/ Age

42 years, 19'" November 1979

44 years, 11'" August 1977

Qualification

Bachelor's  degree (Honors) in
commerce from Delhi University. He is
Qualified Chartered Accountant from
the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl).

Chartered Accountant, Bachelor’s

degree in Science

Experience and
Expertise in specific
functional area

He has over 19 years of experience in
the field of Banking, Finance, Audit,
Internal control, Compliance,
Taxation, Management Information
System and Budgeting etc.

Kuldeep Jain is an Additional Director
on our Board. He has over 15 years of
experience in the field of Accounts,
Finance and Taxation etc.

Terms and condition of
appointment along with
details of remuneration
sought

Non-Executive Director
Remuneration: Nil

Non-Executive Director
Remuneration: Nil

Last drawn
remuneration, if
applicable

Nil

Nil

Number of shares held
in GR Phagwara
Expressway Limited

Nil

Nil

No. of Board Meetings
attended

Attended Seven out of Seven Board
meetings held during the Financial
Year 2021-22

Attended one out of one Board
meetings held during the Financial
Year 2021-22

Original Date of
Appointment

02" February 2021

015t December, 2021

Relationship with other | Nil Nil
Directors
Other Directorship held | 1. Varanasi Sangam Expressway | 1. GR Dwarka Devariya Highway
in Indian companies Private Limited Private Limited
2. GR Phagwara Expressway Limited | 2. Nagaur Mukundgarh  Highways
3. GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Private Limited
Limited 3. GR Govindpur Rajura Highway

4. GR Dwarka Devariya Highway
Private Limited

5. GR Aligarh
Private Limited

6. Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways
Private Limited

Kanpur Highway

Private Limited
4. GR Madanapalli

Private Limited
5. GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
6. GR Bamni Highway Private Limited

Pileru Highway

Membership/Chairman
of the Committees in
other Companies in
India

[=

. GR Phagwara Expressway Limited:
e Chairperson of CSR Committee

. Varanasi Sangam Expressway
Private Limited:
e Member of CSR Committee
e Member of Audit Committee
e Member of Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

1. Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways
Private Limited:
e  Chairperson of CSR
Committee
2. GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli
Highway Private Limited
s Chairperson of CSR
Committee




¢ Chairperson of Stakeholder
Relationship Committee

e Chairperson of Risk Management
Committee

. GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private

Limited

e Chairperson of CSR Committee

. Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways

Private Limited

e Member of CSR Committee

. GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway

Private Limited

e Chairperson of CSR Committee




GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Members,
GR Phagwara Expressway Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 6 (Sixth) Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2022,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended 31% March 2022 are as under:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 31% March 2022 31% March 2021
Revenue from Operations 8,490.78 17,741.81

Other Income 231.66 222.13

Total Revenue 8,722.44 17,963.94

Less: Expenses 8,063.60 15,103.52

Profit before tax 658.84 2,860.42

Less: Tax Expense 168.46 1,441.91

Profit after tax 490.38 1,418.51 N

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
During the year under review, the Company has reported Total Revenue of Rs. 8,722.44 Lakhs as compared
to Rs. Rs. 17,963.94 in financial year 2020-21.

Profit after Tax for the year ended 31% March 2022 is Rs. Rs. 490.38 Lakhs as against Rs. 1,418.51 Lakhs for
the year ended 31 March 2021.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There was no change in the nature of Company’s business during the Financial Year 2021-22.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there was no change in the capital structure of the Company. The Authorised,
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the Company was Rs. 20,30,00,000/- consisting of 2,03,00,000
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights, sweat
equity shares or bonus shares.

DIVIDEND
Considering the requirement of the funds for business operations of the Company, your directors think it
prudent not to recommend dividend for the financial year ended 31% March 2022 (previous year: Nil).

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
During the year under review Company has transferred Rs. 957.63 Lakhs to Debenture Redemption Reserve.

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any regulators or
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

REGISTERED OFFICE : GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector-11, Udaipur-313 002 (Rajasthan)
Ph.:+91-294-2487370, 2483033, Email : info@grinfra.com, Website : www.grinfra.com

CIN : U45400RJ2016PLC056040



MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There have been no material changes and/or commitments affecting the financial position of your company
which has occurred between the end of the financial year upto the date of signing of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT

Your company has neither made any Investment, nor any guarantee has been given. Your Company falls
within scope of the definition “Infrastructure Company” as provided by the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act with regards to loans,
Guarantees and Investments.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

Statutory Auditors

M/s JLN US & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101543 W) were appointed by the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 05" September 2017 as the Statutory Auditors for a period of five
years, to hold office upto the conclusion of the 06™ Annual General Meeting, and accordingly the term of
Statutory Auditor of the Company is expiring at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company. The Board of Directors have proposed the re-appointment of M/s JLN US & Co., Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 101543W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of four consecutive years
from the conclusion of 06™ Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 10t Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

The observations of Statutory Auditors in their Report along with relevant Notes to Accounts are self-
explanatory and therefore, do not require further explanation. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. Further, there was no incidence of fraud reported by the
Statutory Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those which are reportable to the Central
Government.

Internal Auditor

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nayan Jain, Chartered
Accountant (M.No. 445570) was appointed as an internal auditor w.e.f. 8t lanuary 2021, however he
resigned from the office of Internal Auditor w.e.f. 5" March 2022.

Cost Auditors

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records are
made and maintained.

M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants have audited the Cost Statements of the Company and
submitted the Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 315 March 2022. The report does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Further, the Board has approved appointment of M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost
Auditors for the financial year ended 31 March 2023. The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is
required to be ratified by the members, the Board recommends the same for approval by members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting,

Secretarial Auditor

M/s Bharat Choudhary & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice were appointed to conduct Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the financial year ended 31% March 2022. The Secretarial Audit Report for the said
Financial Year is annexed herewith and forms part of this Report as Annexure I. The report does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Ms. Riya Parakh (DIN: 08769864) resigned from the Directorship of the
company w.e.f. 1* December 2021. The board place on records its appreciation for the contributions made
by Ms. Riya Parakh during his tenure as director of the Company. Further Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN: 09307480)
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 1 December 2021

In accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Varun Bhasin (DIN: 03262761), Director
of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself
for reappointment.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
As the Company is not required to appoint an Independent Director, therefore, the requirement to obtain
declaration from Independent Director is not applicable on the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors
Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confirm that:

a) Inpreparation of Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2021-2022, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed and there are no material departures;

b) They have selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of financial year and of the Profit of the Company for the financial year;

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) They have prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) The Company being unlisted sub clause (e) of Section 134(3) is not applicable.

f)  The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

The provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Act regarding conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption
are not applicable to the Company. Further there was no foreign exchange Inflow or Outflow during the year
under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee in accordance with
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR initiatives undertaken by your Company, along
with other details for the Financial Year 2021-22 and salient features on CSR policy forms part of Annual
Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as Annexure -l to this Directors Report. During the year under
review One Meeting of the Committee was held on 1°* July 2021.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.



CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the Financial Year 2021-2022, all contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by your Company
with related parties under Section 188(1) of the Act were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s
length basis. Further, details of material contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company on
arm’s length basis are disclosed in Annexure-Ill to the Directors’ Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral, and legal business conduct. Accordingly,
the Board of Directors has formulated Vigil Mechanism which provides a robust framework for dealing with
genuine concerns & grievances. Specifically, employees can raise concerns regarding any discrimination,
harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any instances of fraud by
or against your Company. During Financial Year under review, no complaint was received by the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, there was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits prescribed
by provision of Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Act.

Further, disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given below:

Name | Designation | Qualification Work Age Remuneration Previous
Experience | (Years) paid in FY Employment
(Years) 2021-22
Heena Company CS, LLB, 7 Years 28 Rs.6.60 Lakhs GR Infratech
Talesara Secretary M.Com Private Limited

None of the employee of the Company holds any equity share of the Company nor is relative of any Director
or KMP of the Company.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the Financial Year 2021-22, Seven Board Meetings were held, details of same along with attendance
of directors therein are as under:

S. No. Date of Board Meeting Mr. Vikas Ms. Riya Mr. Varun | Mr. Kuldeep
Agarwal Parakh* Bhasin Jain**

1 26.05.2021 Yes No Yes NA
2 02.07.2021 Yes No Yes NA
3 03.09.2021 Yes No Yes NA
4 01.10.2021 Yes No Yes NA
5 02.11.2021 Yes No Yes NA
6 01.12.2021 Yes No Yes NA
7 31.01.2022 Yes NA Yes Yes

Meetings eligible to attend 7 5 7 1

Meetings attended 7 0 7 1

* Ms. Riya Parakh ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. 1** December 2021.



**Mr. Kuldeep Jain was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 1* December 2021.

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The provisions of Section 177 relating to constitution of Audit Committee are not applicable on the Company.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178 relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not
applicable on the Company. Accordingly company did not have adopted a policy on Directors’ appointment
and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has a strong and well embedded system of internal controls. This ensures that all assets are
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The internal control system has been designed to ensure that
financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial and other statements and for maintaining
accountability of assets. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses
in the design or operation were observed.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE
The provisions of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 are not applicable on the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Your company regularly reviews the risk management system and major risks associated with business
activities of the company. Further, the Board of Directors takes appropriate measures, reviews the major
risks associated with the Company and takes all requisite measures to minimize them.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by Institute of Companies
Secretaries of India i.e. S5-1 & SS-2 on meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings, respectively.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 31* March 2022 is
available on the Company’s website i.e. http://www.grpel.com/other-compliance/.

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDS)
During the Financial Year, the Company has issued and allotted following Non-convertible debentures
(“NCD”) on Private Placement basis:

S. No. Description of NCD Face value Per NCD | Issue Size Name of Trustee
1. Secured, Rated, Freely Rs. 10 Lakh Rs. 99
Transferrable, Listed, Crores Axis Trustee Services Limited
Redeemable, Non- Convertible
Debentures
OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. The details of Debenture Trustee is available on the Company’s website i.e.
http://www.grpel.com/grievance/.




2. The Company has neither made any application, nor any proceedings are pending under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

3. The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institutions, hence
disclosure under rule (8)(5)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not applicable.

LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs)

The Company has listed its Non Convertible debentures on Wholesale Debt Market Segment on BSE Limited
(“BSE”) on 6™ October 2021. The annual listing fee for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been paid to BSE
Limited.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the National Highways Authority of India, Shareholders, Bankers,
Central and State Government officials for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Varun Bhasin Vikas Agarwal
Director Director \
DIN:03262761 DIN: 03113689

Date: 19'" May, 2022
Place: Gurugram



Bharat Choudhary & Associates

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mob. No.: 9351962446
Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended 31.03.2022)
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

THE MEMBERS,

GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
(CIN: U45400RJ2016PLC056040)

GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR NO.11,
UDAIPUR, RAJASTHAN-313002

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (herein
after called the company). The Company got listed its Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on 06t
October 2022 on BSE Limited. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, during the audit period 01
April, 2021 to 31 March, 2022, the company has, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made herein after:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended on 315t March, 2022 according to the provisions (to the extent applicable)of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4

t. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;
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Board of India Act, (‘SEBI Act’) 1992:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition |
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

1

Office Address: 158, North Ayad, Udaipur-313001, Rajasthan, India



Bharat Choudhary & Associates

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mob. No.: 9351962446

Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, now known as SEBI (Share based
Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 ;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(8) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

6. | have also examined compliance with Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (S5-2) issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

I further report that

» The Board of Directors of the Company has duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

~ Adequate notice has been given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and a
system exists for meaningful participation at the meeting,

» All Decisions at board meeting and Committee meetings have been carried
unanimously/with requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the
Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

# During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with app
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. -
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Bharat Choudhary & Associates
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mob. No.. 9351962446
Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com

I further report that during the audit period :

1. Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN: 09307480) was appointed as an Additional Director of the
company w.e.f. 15t December, 2021.

2. Ms. Riya Parakh (DIN: 08769864) has resigned from the Directorship of the company
w.e.f. 15t December 2021.

3. Issued 990 Secured, Rated, Freely Transferrable, Listed, Redeemable, Non- Convertible
Debentures on a private placement basis, having face value of 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten
Lakhs only) each, at par, aggregating to 99,00,00,000 (Rupees Ninety Nine Crores Only)
listed on 06 October 2021 in dematerialized form.

For BHARAT CHOUDHARY & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

BHARAT CHOUDHARY{3
PROPRIETOR
M. No.: F10700
CoP: 14489

Place: Udaipur
Date: 19/05/2022

UDIN: F010700D000336289

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE-1"
and forms an integral part if this report. |
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Bharat Choudhary & Associates

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mob. No.: 9351962446

Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com

“ANNEXURE-1"
To,
THE MEMBERS,
GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR NO.11,
UDAIPUR, RAJASTHAN- 313002

My Report of given date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the
process and practice | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. |

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company. '

|
4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of

Laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, rules, regulation and
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was Limited to the verification of
procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

BHARAT CHOUDHARY & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

BHARAT CHOUDHAR
PROPRIETOR
M.NO.: F10700
COP: 14489
Place: Udaipur
Date: 19/05/2022
UDIN: F010700D000336289
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ANNEXURE-II
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the GR Phagwara Expressway Limited as a responsible
company: corporate entity commits to undertake appropriate CSR

measures having positive economic, social, and
environmental impact to transform lives and to help
build more capable and vibrant communities by
integrating its business values and strengths.
In its continuous efforts to positively impact the society
and to target the inclusive growth of all the stakeholders,
the Company has formulated a guiding policy
concentrating mainly on promoting education,
environment sustainability, economic empowerment,
rural development, health care and sanitation.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S. No. | Name of Director Designation/ Nature of Number of Number of meetings of
Directorship meetings of CSR CSR Committee
Committee held attended during the
during the year year
i. Mr. Varun Bhasin Chairman/Non-Executive 1 1
Director
ii. Mr. Vikas Agarwal Member/Non-Executive 1 1
Director
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR | http://www.grpel.com/composition-of-board-

committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects | committees/
approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company.

4, Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR | Not Applicable
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report).

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if
any.

S. | Financial Year | Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be setoff for the
No. preceding financial years (in Rs. Lakhs) financial year, if any (in Rs. Lakhs)
NIL
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Net Loss of Rs. 1886.46 Lakhs
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Net Loss of Rs.
26.28 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the -
previous financial years.
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. -
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b + 7c) P e




8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year

(in Rs. Lakhs)

Amount Unspent

Total Amount

section 135(6).

Unspent CSR Account as

to
per

transferred

135(5).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section

Amount

(in Rs. Lakhs)

Date of transfer

Name of Fund

Amount
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Date of transfer

Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
S: Name of | Item from | Local | Location of the Project | Amou | Amount | Amount Mode | Mode of
No | the the list of | area project durati | nt spentin | transferr | of Implementation -
Project activities (Yes/ on allocat | the edto Imple | Through
in No) ed current | Unspent menta | Implementing
Schedule forthe | financia | CSR tion- | Agency
Vil to the project | | Year Account Direct
Act. State | District (in Rs. (in Rs. for the (Yes/ Name | CSR
Lakhs) | Lakhs) project as | No). Registca
per tion
Section riumbet
135(6)
(in Rs.
Lakhs)
L Not Applicable
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. Name of the Item Local Location of the Amount Mode of | Mode of
No. Project fromthe | area project spent for | Impleme | implementation -
list of (Yes/ the ntation - | Through implementing
activities | No) project Direct Agency
in State District (in Rs. (Yes/No) | Name CSR
schedule Lakhs) registration
VIl to the number.
Act.

Not Applicable

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

(f) Total amount spent for Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any.

S. No. | Particular Amount (in Rs. Lakhs)
i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (26.28)
ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year Nil
iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil
iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nil




previous financial years, if any

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv}]

Nil

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S.No. | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount remaining
Financial Year | transferred to | spentin fund specified under Schedule | to be spentin
Unspent CSR the VIl as per section 135(6), if succeeding financial
Account under | reporting any. years. (in Rs. Lakhs)
section 135 (6) | Financial Name Amount | Date of
(in Rs. Lakhs) | Year of the (inRs transfer
(in Rs. Fund Lakhs).
Lakhs)
Not applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
S. Project | Name of Financial Project | Total Amount Cumulative | Status of
No ID the Year in duration | amount | spenton amount the
Project. which the allocated | the project | spent project -
project was for the in the at the end of | Completed
commenced project reporting reporting /Ongoing.
(in Rs. Financial Financial
Lakhs) Year (in Year (in Rs.
Rs. Lakhs) Lakhs)

Not applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset - wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose

name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired
(including complete address and location of the capital asset).

Not Applicable

11,

Specify the reason(s), if the company has

failed to spend two per cent of the average

net profit as per section 135(5).

For and on behalf of Board,

Not Applicable

L/m Rt Uiiea ﬂ@f‘“”“’g

Varun Bhasin

Chairman (CSR Committee)

DIN:03262761

Vikas Agarwal
Director
DIN: 03113689

Date: 19'" May, 2022

Place: Gurugram



ANNEXURE -l

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

Form No. AOC-2

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the related
party and nature of
relationship

Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms of the
contracts/arrangem | the contracts or
ent/transactions contracts / | arrangements or
arrangeme | transactions including
nts/transac | the value, if any:
tions

Date(s)
approval

the Board, if

any:

Amount paid
as advances
(if any)

of
by

Date on which the special

resolution
general

was

passed
meeting as required

in

under first proviso to section

188

Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the related
party and nature of
relationship

Nature
contracts/
arrangement/
transactions

of

Duration of the
contracts/
arrangements/

transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements

transactions including the value, if any:

Date(s) of
approval by
the Board, if
any:

Amount
paid

advances
(if any, in
Rs. Lakhs)

as

G R Infraprojects Limited
(“GRIL")
{Holding Company)

Operation
Maintenance
Agreement
(“O&M")

and

The contract shall
remain in force w.e.f.
ogh September,
2021 and shall
remain in force for
one Year.

0&M Agreement Date: 08" September 2021

Amount of Contract: Rs. 4 Crore

Subject Matter: Operation & Maintenance of the

Project Highway i.e.

Four laning of Phagwara-

Rupnagar Section of NH-344A from Km. 0+000
{(Design Chainage) to km. 80+820 (Design Chainage)
in the state of Punjab on Hybrid Annuity Mode.

Not
applicable

Nil

Date: 19/05/2022
Place: Gurugram

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

i s Uu;e

Varun Bhasin
Director
DIN:03262761

Vikas Agarwal
Director
DIN: 03113689
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Chartered Accountants
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Mobile : +91-98280 58602, +91-98280 52131

Email : maheshmenaria@gmail.com
jlnusudaipur@gmail.com

Web - www,jlinus.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GR PHAGWARA
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st
March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2022, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by
ICAI and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.



GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.



GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020(“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in Annexure - [ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure IL



GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a
material impact its financial position;

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any
provisioning

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 103543W

o

-

CA Mahesh Menaria

Partner

M No. 400828

UDIN: 22400828AJLQZG8410

Udaipur, May 19, 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR PHAGWARA
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2022

i)

ii)

iii)

v)

vi)

vii)

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no
fixed assets in existence with company.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly
the reporting requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities
and therefore does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements
under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting
requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit.
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly
reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

viii)

x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

xiv)

XV)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year.

Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial Institutions.
The company does not have any borrowings from government or Debenture
Holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for
which they were taken,

(a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the
management, the money raised by way of listed debt instruments and has been
applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has made
preferential allotment or private placement of non convertible debentures during
the year under review and the requirement of section 42 and 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have been complied with and the amount raised have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date
for the period under audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

Xix)

Xx)

xxi)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
them.,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - 1A of the Reserve Bank
of India, 1934.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not
applicable.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101543W

-

CA Mahesh™Menaria

Partner

M No. 400828
UDIN: 22400828AJLQZG841

Udaipur, May 19, 2022



GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)
Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR PHAGWARA
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GR PHAGWARA
EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error.



GR PHAGWARA EXPRESSWAY LIMITED
Independent Auditors’ Report on standalone financial statements (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

For JLN US & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 1 w

CA Mahe enaria

Partner

M No. 400828

UDIN: 22400828AJLQZG8410

Udaipur, May 19, 2022



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
CIN: U43400RJ2016PLOD36040

Balance Shest

as at 31 March 2022

< int Lakdes
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assels
Non-current assels
14} Fimancial assets
{1} Other financial assets 4 50,744.33 51,500
(b} Other non-current assets 5 224005 5,334.81
fe) Tax assets & 140244 L1075
Total non-current assets 53,786.82 57,245 55
Current assets
ta) Financial assets
(1) Trade recenvable 7 2215
() Cash and cash equivalents B 145352
(i} Other bank balanves 9 1215730
{1v) Other fmancial assets 4 4,165.00
(b} Other current assets 5 1,151.40
Total current assets 1764140
Total assets 75.587.01
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(@) Equity share capstal 10 2.030.00 2.030.00
(b} Other equity 1 6.007.21 360685
Total equity 8,127.21 7,636.83
Liabilities
Non-current Habilities
(2} Fmancaial Liabilittes
{} Borrowmngs iz 531,930.69 3044145
(b} Deferred tax habilities (net) S 2374.72 2,206.26
Total non-current labilities 54,325.41 61,247.71
Current liabilities
ta} Fmancial habilies
{1} Borrowings 3.370.68 317453
() Trade payables - total cutstanding dues of 13
tal micro enterprises and small enterprises - 5
th} creditors other than mucro enterprises and small enterprises o321 342510
(1} Other financial liabalities 14 051 [t
by Other current liabilities 15 11877 10187
Total current liabilities 3.588.17 670247
Total liabilities 57.913.58 67.950.18
Total equity and liabilities £6.040.79 73.567.01
Basis of preparation, measurement and sigmificant accounting policies 2-3
Notes to financial statements -3
The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even dale attached
U = W
(;,,é St —_—
For JLN US AND COMPANY Vikas Aga Varun Bhasin
Clarterod Accountmts Dhirector £ CED Director
Firm's FReg. No. 10153430 DIN. 03113682 DIN: 03262761

NS

CA Mahesh Menaria
Partier

Membership No: 400828
Place: Udaipur

Date: 19 May 2022

Place: Gurugram
Date : 19 May 2022

Plave: Gurugram
Date : 19 May 2022

e

Kuldeep Jain
Cliisf Famcial Offfcer

Heena Talesara
Company Secretary

15! Memb. No. A42655
Place: Udaipur

Date: 19 May 2022

Place: Udaipur
Date: 19 May 2022




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
CIN: U43400R]2016PLC056040

Statement of Profit and Loss

for the vear ended 31 March 2022

§ in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Income

Revenue from operations 16 B490.78 17,741.81

Other income 17 23166 22213
Total income §,722. 17,963,944
Expenses

Construclion costs 8 273259

Employee benefits sxpense 19 6.60

Finance costs 1] 4.866.43

(ther expenses 21 45798
Total expenses §,063.60
Profit before tax 65584
Tax expense:

Current tax e = -

Adjustment related to income tax pertaining to earlier periods » - (30875}

Deferred tax charge 22 168 40 1,751.66
Total tax expenses 10844 144191
Profit for the year 45038 141851
Other comprehensive income -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 400 38 141851
Earnings per share
(Nominal value of share Rs.10 each)

Basw (Rs.) 30 242 690

Diluted (Rs} a0 242 699
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 23

4-34

Notes to financial statements

The notes referred above are an ntegral part of these inancial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attachad

U [/

(]

For JLN US AND COMPANY Vikas Agarwal Varun Bhasin
Chiariered Accorniants Directar £CE@ Director
Firm's Reg. No. 101343W - DIN: 03113589 DN, 03262761
g ¢ Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 19 May 2022 Date: 19 May 2022

y ) 4“30;5;.

fpo

CA Mahesh Menaria s na Talesara Kuldeep Jain
Parber = Chief Finumaa! Officer
Membership No: 400828 !

Place: Udaipur Place: Udarpur Place Udaipur
Date: 19 May 2022 Date: 19 May 2022 Date: 19 May 2022




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
CIN: U43400R] 2016 PLCO56040

Statement of Cash Flows

for the vear ended 31 March 2022

< in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No, Forthe yearended  For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 658.54 286042
Adjustments for:
Interest income (231.66) (222.13)
Finance costs 4.860.43 5.047.60
5.293.61 7.685.89
Waorking capital adjustments :
Decrease / (Increase) in financial and non-financial assets 3.533.98 {13,381.8%)
(increase} in trade receivables {47.58) (0.80)
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables (3,326.90) 3.333.11
Increase /{decrease ) in provisions, financial and non-financial liabilities 16.64 (833.35)
Cash generated / (used in) operating activities 5489.75 (3,196.98)
Income tax paid (net) {291.70) (647,70}
Net cash generated / (used in) operating activities (A) 5,198.05 (5,844.68)
Cash flows from investing activilies
Interest received 23166 22213
Redemptions in bank depasits (net) 747330 -
MNet cash generated from investing activities (B) 7,704.96 22213
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid 4,251.08) (4,015.57)
Repayment of non-current bor rowings {7,510,16) .
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 2 9,680.10
Netcash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (11,761.24) 5.670.53
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() 1,141.77 47.98
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 145.52 97.54
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 1,287.29 145.52
Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of (refer note 8) < i Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balances with banks:
- Current accounts 1,286.19 14442
Cash on hand 1.10 110
Cash and cash equivalents 1,287.29 145.52
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash flow 1,287.29 145.52

2 The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method®

as setout in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 “Statement of Cash Flows",




Notes: {continued)

3 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in terms of Ind AS 7: 2 i Laklis
Avat Net cash flow Others Axat
1 April 2021 31 March 2022
Non-current borrowings 59,041.45 11,145.89) 4.035.13 51.950.69
Current borrowings 3,174.73 R 19395 3,370,68
Total 62,216.18 (11,145.89) 4,251.08 55,321.37
As. 2y Net cash flow Others Asat
1 April 2020 31 March 2021
Non-current borrowings 51,410.70 5,670.53 1.960.22 5904145
Current borrowings 8736 - 308737 317473
Total 51,495.06 5,670.53 5,047.59 62,216.15

4 Figures in brackets represent outflows.

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
Notes to financial statements 4-34
The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date attached
&
OJV'JQ/_( VM o —
For JLN US AND COMPANY Vikas Agarw, Varun Bhasin
Chartered Acconnlants Diracier &CE o Director
Firm’s Reg. No. 101543\ DIN: 03113689 DIN: 03262761
P Place; Gurugram Place: Gurugram
”
- - \ Date: 19 May 2022 Date : 19 May 2022
LN
L1
o=
CA Mahesh Menaria Heena Talesara <uldeep Jain
Partner Company Secrelary Chief Fivancial Officer
Membership No: 400828 ICSI Memb. No. A42635
Place: Udaipur Place: Udaipur Place: Udaipur

Date: 19 May 2022 Date : 19 May 2022 Date : 19 May 2022




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
CIN: U45400R]2016PLCO56040

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2022

A.  Equity Share Capital

< in Lakhs
Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2020 2,03,00,000 2,030.00
Changes in Equitv Share Capital due to prior period errors . .
Changes in equity share capital during the vear - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,03,00,000 2,030.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors N 2
Changes in equity share capital during the vear 5 =
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,03,00,000 2,030.00
B. Other Equity &in Lakhs
g Retained Hehentte
Particulars Earsings redemp?ion Total
reserve
Balance as at commencement of year 118832 - 4,188.32
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2021
Profit for the year 1,418.51 . 1.418.51
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5,606.83 - 5,606.83
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2022
Profit for the vear 490.38 - 490.38
Items of other comprehensive income for the year , net of taxes =
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (957.63) 957.63 >
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {467.25) 957.63 490.38
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5,139.58 957.63 6,097.21
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2-3
MNotes to financial statements 1-34

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For JLN US AND COMPANY

Clurtered Acconntants
Firm's Reg. No. 101343W

CA Mahesh Menaria —
Partner

Membership No: 400828

Place: Udaipur

Date : 19 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

U,

Vikas Agarw
Director LCEY
DIN: 03113689
Place: Gurugram
Date : 19 May 2022

Heena Talesara
Company Secretary

ICSE Memb. No. A42655
Place: Udaipur

Date : 19 Mav 2022

-

VamM

Varun Bhasin

Director

DIN: 03262761
Place: Gurugram

Date:

19 May 2022

Kuldeep Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Udaipur
Date : 19 May 2022




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Reporting entity

GR Phagwara Expressway Limited (‘the Company’) having Registered office at GR House, Hiran Magri,
Sector 11, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313002 was incorporated in Udaipur Rajasthan, India on September 21, 2016 as
a public limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’) as a subsidiary of G R Infraprojects
Limited.

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) to design, build, operate and transfer basis,
("DBOT Annuity" or "Hybrid Annuity") the project rela ting to Four Laning of Phagwara to Rupnagar Section
from Km 0.000 (Design Chainage ) to km 80.820 (Design Chainage ) NH 344A in the State of Punjab on
Hybrid annuity mode. The company has entered into concession agreement with the National Highway
Authority of India (“NHAI") dated 5th October, 2016.

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on
May 19, 2022,

2. Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the “‘Act’), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

€. Basis of mmeasureinent

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost using accrual basis of accounting except
certain financial instruments measured at fair values.

d. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

- Recognition of Current / Deferred tax expense o B2V
- Revenue recognition under service concession arra ngement =/ i
g

;| 400828 S
-_‘I _:‘UDAlP‘ '/.'
./



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

- Provision for doubtful debts
€. Measurement of fair values

Some of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer.

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial
reporting team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

- Investments
- Financial instruments




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

3

Significant accounting polices

a. Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company
at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss.

b. Financial instriuments

it

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset and financial liability is initially measured
at fair value except Trade receivable which is measured at transaction price in accordance with Ind AS
115. Transaction price that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction price directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right (not
contingent on future events) to off-set the recognised amounts either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of
business model and contractual cashflows in which they are held.

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVOCI - equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

At amortized cost .

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

At present, the Company does not have investments in any debt securities classified as FVOCI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

At fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the
assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payinents of principal and interest
Further, management also evaluates whether the contractual cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest considering the contractual terms of the instru ment.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or
premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL.  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at  These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

FVOCI recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.




GR Phagw

ara Expressway Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

7.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of loan to the extent
it is probable that some or all of the loan facility will be drawn down. The facility fee and related
payments are accounted for as a transaction cost under Ind AS 109. The said facility fee is deferred
and treated as a transaction cost when draw-down occurs; it is not amortised prior to the draw-down.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Further, the contractual terms of the
existing financial assets are substantially modified, such modification is treated as the derecognition of
original financial asset and the recognition of a new financial asset. Such newly recognized financial
asset is measured at fair value on initial recognition. The difference in respective carrying amount, if
any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the modification of a financial asset does not
result in its derecognition, then the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated at
original effective interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

€. Operating cycle

All

assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal

operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule II1 of the Companies Act, 2013. Operating cycle is

the time from start of the project to their realization in cash or cash equivalents.
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d. Property, plant and equipment

il

il

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. '

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The consequential gain or loss
is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives as prescribed under schedule II of the Act.

€. Intangible assets

ii.

iii.

Recogm'tim: and measureiment

Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an
intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when th/egs,sg_t is
derecognised. T ZEAPRSY
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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iv. Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible assets less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation
and amortisation in financial statement.

f. [Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items
held for use in civil construction work and / or production of inventories are not written down below cost
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The
cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost method, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their present location and condition.

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes direct materials and labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on
weighted average cost method. Trading goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined on weighted average cost method basis.

g. Iinmpairment
i Iimpairment of financial instrunents

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- contract assets recognised under contract with customers; and

- financial assets measured at FVOCI including debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except
for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured as
12 month expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Twelve months expected credit losses
are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less ;l,lra;n&

months). = . /o CAE AN
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly sinceinitial recognition and when estimating
expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet.
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Impairinent of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs)
do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

h. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g. Under short-
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

i.  Provisions and contingencies (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not
provided for.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision
is reversed.”

“Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.”

Contingencies

Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made.

j. Revenue from contracts with custoiner

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Com pany expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It
excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent.

Service Concession Arrangement

Service concession arrangements (SCA) refers to the arrangement between the grantor (a public sector
entity) and the operator (a private sector entity) to provide service that give the public access to major
economic and social facilities utilising private sector funds and expertise.

With respect to the SCA, revenue and cost are allocated between those relating to the construction
services and those related to the operation and maintenance services, and accounted for separately.

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operates and
maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, this arrangement is accounted for based on the nature obthes
consideration. The intangible asset is used to the extent that the Company receives a right to charge the .0,
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users of the public service. The financial asset is used when the Company has an unconditional right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.

Design-Build-Operate-Transfer (DBOT) contracts on hybrid annuity basis contain three streams of
revenue- Construction revenue, Financing income and Operations and maintenance (O&M) income. The
construction stream of DBOT revenues are accounted for in the construction phase of DBOT, O&M
income is recognised in the operating phase of the DBOT, while finance income is recognised over a
concession period based on the imputed interest method.

Revenue from construction of contracts is recognised by applying percen tage of completion method after
providing for foreseeable losses, if any. percentage of completion method is determined as a proportion of
the cost incurred up to the reporting date to the total estimated cost to complete. Foreseeable losses, if any
on the contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of
completion of the contract. While determining the amount of foreseeable loss, all elements of cost and
related incidental income not included in contract revenue is taken into consideration. Contract is
reflected at cost that are expected to be recoverable till such time the outcome of the contract cannot be
ascertained reliably and at realisable value thereafter.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer
e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Others
Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

k. Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset: (ii) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of
lease and (iii) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

a) Asalessee

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company uses judgement
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals/termination options).

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability

adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs ©AP7 =

-
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incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the
commencement date, lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payvment made.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including
in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Compa ny is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a
lease agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re-
measurement of the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on
modification is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the modifications that increase the
scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets at a price commensurate with
the stand-alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease modifications,
discounting rates used for measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of
all the assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b) Asalessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. When the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Recognition of interest income or expense, Insurance clainm received
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

- Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted /expected to be admitted
and to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.
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#. Income tax

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except
to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in OCL

i

i

Current tax

Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the ca rrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substa ntively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Any tax credit available is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilized. The said asset is
created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and loss and shown under the head of deferred tax.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case,
the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive [ncome.
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i

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

In a capitalisation or bonus issue or a share split, ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders for no
additional consideration. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the
proportionate change in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the
beginning of the earliest period presented

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal re porting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in
hand, bank balances, unencumbered demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three
months or less and other short term highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement.

“Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits / (Loss) before tax is adjusted for
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.”

e 4
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¥. Standards notified but not yet effective

Following are the amendments to existing standards (as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
on 23rd March, 2022) which are effective for annual periods beginning after 1st April 2022. The Company
intends to adopt these standards or amendments from the effective date, as applicable and relevant. These
amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements. This
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Company when it will adopt the
respective standards.

- Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - For items produced during testing/trail phase,
clarification added that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss and considered as part of cost of PPE.

- Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets - Provisions on what constitutes
cost of fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or not) is included.

- Ind AS 41 Agriculture - This aligns the fair value measurement in Ind AS 41 with the requirements
of Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and
enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for
the most appropriate fair value measurement.

- Ind AS 101 - First time Adoption of Ind AS - Measurement of Foreign Currency Translation
Difference in case of subsidiary/associate/ JV's date of transition to Ind AS is subsequent to that of
Parent.

- Ind AS 103 - Business Combination - Reference to revised Conceptual Framework is included. For
contingent liabilities / levies, clarification is added on how to apply the principles for recognition of
contingent liabilities from Ind AS 37. Recognition of contingent assets is not allowed.

- Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it
applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.
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4 Other financial assets {Unsecured considered good)
$in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Right to receive annuity from concession grantor 28 5i,144.33 51,300.01
50.144.33 51,500.01
Carrent
Right lo receive annuuty from concession grantor 23 EX §,159.21
Security and other deposits 616 588
Uthers .10 -
3,957.37 4,165.09
54,101.70 33,605.10
5 Other assets (Unsecured, Considered Good)
£ in Likhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Balance with government authorities
GST input recaivable 2,240.05 5,334.81
2,240.05 5.334.51
Cuarrent
Advance to supphers for goeds and services 053 049
Frepacd expenses 5149 243
Balance with government authorities
GST input receivable 102335 =
GST Paid under Protest -
CST TDS reveivable L177.20 1,098 .48
2,255.58 115140
6 Tax assets
+in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No, Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Advance tax {ret of provision for tax) 14024 111073
14024 1.110.72




7 Trade receivables

Tin Lakhs

Particulars Ref Note No.

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

Current
Trade receivables
Less: expected credit loss / allowance for doubtful debis

69.73

2215

6973

2215

Break-up of Security defails
Unsecured, considered good
Trade recervables - credit impaired

Impairment Allowance {allowance for bad and doublful debts)
Balance as at begning of the year

Add; Allowanve for the year

Less: Adjustment during the year

Balance as at end of the year

Below is Trade receivables ageing schedule based on oustanding from due date of payment

6973

6973

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Current but

not dae Less than & & months -

month 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

31 March 2022

Undisputed Trade Receivables - ronsidercd good - 3668 - - *
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have

significant increase in credit risk - # - = =
Undisputed Trade recervable - credit impaired - - - = -
Disputed Trade receivabiles - considered good - - . - £
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - -

13.05

6973

Total = 56.66 B = -

31 March 2021

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 080 = 830 -
Undisputed Trade Recervables - which have

significant icrease in credit nsk . . - = =
Undisputed Trade recervable - credit impaired - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - % = &
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impared " % . u -

Total - 0.50 - 530 -

Noles:-
a} Trade Recervables are non interest bearing,

by Mo trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jemntly with any other person Nor any trade or other receivable are due
) 3 3 ), pe y

from firms or private companies respectively in which any director s a partner, a director or & member

Retention money relating to construction contracts are included in above trade receivables as they are recoverable within the operating cvele of the Company

& in Lukhs

Particulars Ref Note No.

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Retention money

21.86 63
21.86 .05
8 Cash and cash equivalents
& 1y Lakilz
Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance with banks
in current accounts w3l.21 144.42
Cash in hand 1.10 110
Deposits with onginal maturity of less than three months® 65493 £
1,287.20 145.52
*Deposits hen with banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account {DSRA) and Major Maintenance Reserve Account (MMREAL
429.00 -
9 Other bank balances
£ iy Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Deposits with remainung matunty less than 12 months # 4,684.00 12,157.30
4,684 00 1215730
4,684.00 1.00

# Deposits lien with banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) and Major Maintenance Reserfe AdcBuny {(SHRERA).




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

10

Equily Share capital
¢ in Lakhs
Particulars Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
20,300,000 equuty shares of Rs. 10 each 2,030.00 2,030.00
2,030.00 2,030.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
20,300,000 aquty shares of Rs. 10 each 2030.00 203000
2,030.00 2.030.00

Reconciliation of equily share outstanding al the beginning and at the end of the year.
¥ it Lakies

Parnculars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the commencement of the year 03,0000 2030.60 2,03.00,000 2,030.00
Add. Issued during the vear o = - -
Al the end of the vear 2,030,000 2.830.00 2.03,00,000 2.030.00

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Numbers % of total share Numbers % of total share

Equuty share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held by

- GR Infraprejects Limited {Parent Ccmn‘zm'} 2,03,00,000 10000 2,03,00.000 100.00

Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at Mach 31, 2022 As at Mach 31, 2021
Promoter name No. of %of total ‘% Change Ne. of “eof total % Change during
Shares shares  during the vear Shares shares the vear
G K Infraprojects Limited 2,03,00.000 100.0¢ - 2.03,00,000 100.00

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares, Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The
equity shares are entitied to recerve dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands] are in propostion to
1ts share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company Veting nights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any cail or other sums presently pavable have not
been paid Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfesture of the shares

©On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distnbunon of all preferential
4mounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Other equity
& in Lakis
Particulars } Debenture
Re(afned redemption Total
eamings reserve
Balance as at 01 April 2020 4,188.32 - 4,188.32
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2021 -
Prefit for the vear 1.418.51 - 1418.51
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5,606.93 - 5,606.83
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2022
Profit for the year 49038 490.38
Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes
Transter to debenture redemption reserve {957.63) 95783
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5,139.58 957.63 6,097.21

Debenture redemption reserve ('DRR')

The reserve is created for redemption of nen-convertible debentures in accordance with the sub-section (4] of section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 out of profits of the
Company avaslable for dividend distribution. Pursuant to Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules, 2019 dated 16 August 2019, the requirement for
creation of DRR for histed company is done away with. Accordingly, the Company has transferred the accumulated DER balance to Retained Earnings




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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12 Non current borrowings
£ vi Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Secured Loans - From Banks

HDFC Bank Limited 19.577.01 19808 4o
Axis Bank 10,259.09 16,286.14
Umion Bank of India - 11,714.60
3583670 47.802.20
Debentures - Secured
Rated, Listed, Sevured and redeemable non convertible Debentures 9,542.78 -
9,542.78 -
Loan from G R Infraprojects Limited (Parent Company) 9,941.89 14,406.98
9,941.89 14,406,983
Total 55,321.37 £2,216.18
Nen-Current pertion of long term borrowings » 51,950.69 59,041.45
Current maturities of long term borrowings 3,370.68 3,174.73
55.321.37 0l.216.18

13 Trade payables
1 in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total outstanding dues of

Micro enterprises and small enterpnises {refer note below} i =
Creditors other than mucro enterprises and small enterprises | 3423.10
98.21 3425.10

Ageing for trade payables from due date

As at 31 Mar 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
Undisputed creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 9.7 - - - 98.21
Disputed creditors other than micro enterpnises and small enterprises - - - - -
Undisputed Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Micro enterprises and smail enterprises - - - - -
Total 98.21 - - - 96,21
As at 31 Mar 2021 Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed creditors other than aucre enterprises and small enterprises 342510 - - - 342510
Disputed creditors other than micro enterprises and small entarprises - = - k2 %
Undisputed Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 3425.10 - - - 3425.10
Notes:-

a) Trade payable are non interest bearing and generally have credit pericd of 30-90 days.

b} For terms and condinons relabing to related partv receivables, refer Note 23

¢} Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
¢ 12t Luklss &in Lakls
Trade payables = T
Pavable to refated parhies 3 F

d)  Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Details of Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Particalars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The principal antount and the interest due thereon (to be shoswn separately) remaining unpaid to any = -
supphier at the end of each accounting vear.

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section lo of the Micro, Small and Medium - -

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {27 of 2004), along with the amount of the pavment made to the

suppilier bevond the appointed day during each accounting year:

The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment (which has been 2 2
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

the Mcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear; and - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and pavabile even in the succeeding years, unbil such . -
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpase of

disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the defimbon of nuero
and small enterpnises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medwm Enterprises Development Act 2000 has been made in the standalone financial statements as at the
reporting date based on the information seveived and available with the Company. On the basis of such information, no interest 1s pavable to any micro, smali and medium
enlerprises,
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14 Other financial liabilities

¢ i Lakhs

Particulars Ref Note No. As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Emplovee related habilities 0.51 077
0.51 0.77

15 Other current liabilities

£ in Lakhs

Ref Note No. As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Statulory lability
TDS pavable

101.87

10187
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GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

16 Revenue from operations

& in Lakdis

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from contracts with customers 3438.38 6,159.69
Revenue from contracts with customers {COS) 1.57 3,.340.57
Revenue from contracts with customers (Bonus) - 480.36
Revenue from contracts with customers (Utility) 171.98 10285
Finance income 4.878.85 7,638.34
5490.78 17,741.81
17 Other income

¢ Lakhs

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Interest income

- on deposits with banks 231.66 22213
23166 222.13
15 Civil construction costs
<n Lakhis
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Civil sub-contract charges 1,858.31 4,934.30
Civil sub-contract charges (Bonus) - 480.36
Civil sub-contract charges (COS) 1.3 3.303.15
Civil sub-contract charges (O&M) 693.25 611.11
Civil sub-contract charges - (Utility) 170.20 101.69
Labour cess 929 43.56
1732.59 947037
19 Employee benefits expenses
T in Lakhs
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 6.60 5.63
6.60 5.63
20 Finance costs
& Lakhis
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on Borrowing
- banks 2,964.97 3,904.36
- debentures 311.74
- cthers L1749 L115.69
Interest on mobilisation advances - -
Other borrowing cost 414.76 27.54
4.860.43 5.047.60
21 Other expenses
< in Lakdis
Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Insurance expenses 97.21 13%.65
Payment te auditors {refer note (i) below) 0.60 110
Legal and professional charges 2828 12.87
Independent engineers fees 77.16 159.83
Annual custody fee 0.75 0.81
Electricity expenses 230,86 160.28
Bank charges 0.08 oM
Other expenses 3.04 0.02
Input credit reverse - 99.32
457.98 573.92




GR Phagwara Expressway Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(i) Payment to auditors

& Lakhs

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Payment to auditors (exclusive of GST)
- as audilor
- Statutory audit 0.60 0.30
- Other services - 0.80
0.60 1.10
22 Tax expense
A, Income tax (income) / expense recognised i the Statement ot Probit and Loss
& i Lakfis
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax

Current tax on profit for the vear

Tax adjustments relating to previous vear - {309.75)
Deferred tax
Attributable to-
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (refer note D} 168.40 1.751.60
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 168.46 1441.91
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
& i Lakis
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 658.84 2,860.42
Tax using the Company’s statutory tax rate 165.82 719.91
Effect of :
Impact of tax ordinance 930.08
Taxatien in respect of earlier vears - (309.75)
Deferred tax adjustments relating to previous year 101.67
Others 264 -
Tax expense 168.46 1,441.91
e Recognised deferred tax (assels) and liabilities
Movement in temporary differences
As on 31 March 2022 & i Likiss
Deferred tax Deferred tax MNet deferred tax
Particulars (assets) liabilities  (assets)/ liabilities
Difference in carrving value and tax base in measurement of financial - 3049 3049
instrument at amortised cost
Service concession income - 2,59263 2,592.63
Unused tax losses {248.40) - (248.40)
Net deferred tax (assets) / liabilities (248.40) 262312 2,374.72
As on 31 March 2021 ¢ in Lakiis
Pactiulan Deferred tax Def_en'?d. tax Net d«:f‘em;'c! tax
{assets) liabilities  (assets) / liabilities
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial - 108.61 108.61
instrumaent at amortised cost
Service concession income - 3,943.03 3,943.03
Unused tax losses (1,845.38) - (1.545.38)
Net deferred tax (assels)/ liabilities (1,845.38) 405164 2,206.26

Deferred tax asset has been recognised as it is reasonably certain that the deferred tax asset shall be realised against future taxable incomes.
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B. Recognised deferred tax (assets) and Habilities
As on 31 March 2022
Movement in temporary differences

& in Laklis

Particulars Balance as at  Recognised in profit Balance as at 31
1 April 2011 or loss during the March 2022
year
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 108.61 {78.12} 30.49
Instrument at amortised cost
Service concession income 3.943.03 (1.350.40) 2.592.63
Unused tax losses (1,845.38) 1,596.98 {248.40)
2,206.26 168.46 2,374.72
As on 31 March 2021
Movement in temporary differences
T in Lakdis

Particulars

Balance as at

Recognised in profit

Balance as at

TApril 2020 or loss during the 31 March 2021
vear
Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 125.67 (17.06) 108.61
instrument at amortised cost
Service concession income 3,299.38 613.65 3,943.03
Unused tax losses (1,822.03) (22.45) {1,845.38)
MAT credit entitlement {1,147.52) 1,147,532 -
454.60 1,751.66 2,206.26
E Unused tax losses < in Lakhs
Particulars Balance as al 31 March 2022 Balance as at 31 March 2021
Carry Forward  Expiry assessment Carry Forward Expiry assessment
Losses year Losses year
AY 2019-20 - 2027-28 1.654.53 2027-28
AY 2020-21 986.98 2028-29 4,201.57 2028-29
AY 2021-22 - 2029-30 1.476.10 2029-30
Total 986.93 7.332.26
Unused Tax Losses recognised 986,98 7.332.26
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23 Related party disclosure
A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions d uring the year

(a) Parent company:
G R Infraprojects Limited

(b) Key Management Personnel ("KMP"):
Mr. Vinod Kumar Agarwal - Director (resigned w.e.f. 02.02.2021)
Mr. Anand Rathi - Director (resigned w.e.f. 02.02.2021)
Mr. Vikas Agarwal - Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Kuldeep fain - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Heena Talesara - Company Secretary
Ms. Riya Parakh - Director (resigned w.e.f. 01.12.2021)
Ms. Anu Kalra - Director (resigned w.e.f. 30.06.2020)

Mr. Varun Bhasin - Director (w.e.f. 02.02.2021)
Mr. Kuldeep Jain-Additional Director (w.e.f. 01.12.2021)

B. Related party fransactions with Holding Company and its closing balances

The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable than
those available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be available, in respect of similar transactions with non-key

management personnel related entities on an arm’s length basis.

The aggregate value of the Company's transactions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel and entities over

which they have control or significant influence is as follows:

2 in Lakhs

Nature of transaction

Transaction value

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(a) Loan received

(i) GR Infraprojects Limited
(b) Loan repaid

(i) GR Infraprojects Limited
(c) Construction costs

(i) G R Infraprojects Limited
(d) Interest Paid on unsecured loan

(i) GR Infraprojects Limited
(e} Remuneration

(i) Heena Talesara

2,424.38 3.739.75
7.946.96 9.73
2,72330 8,950.45
1,174.96 1,115.69

6.60 5.63

Particulars

Balance outstanding
receivable/(payable)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(a) Loan payable

(i) G R Infraprojects Limited 9,941.89 14,406.98
(b) Trade payable
(i) G R Infraprojects Limited 6264 3,371.84
(c) Outstanding Remuneration
{i} Heena Talesara 0.51 0.77
ST TN
‘:y .\
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24

A

Fair Value Measurements

Accounting classification and fair values

As al 31 March 2022 ¥ i Lakdis
Fair Value
Level 1 - Quoted Level 2- Level 3- Total
Particulars FVTPL* FVOCI* Amortisedcost  Total priceinactive  Significant Significant
markelts observable unobservable
inputs inputs
Trade receivables - - 69.73 69.73 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,287.29 1,287.29 - - - -
Other bank balance - - 4,684.00 4,684.00 - - - =
Other financial assets - - 5410170 54,101.70 - - - -
Total Financial assets - - 60,142.72 60,142.72 - - - -
Borrowings - - 55,321.37 55,321.37 = - - -
Trade pavable - - 98.21 98.21 - - - N
Other financial liabilities - - 0.51 0.51 - - - -
Total Financial liabilities - - 55,420.09 55,420.09 - - = =
As at 31 March 2021 < it Lakhs
Fair Value
Level 1- Quoted Level 2- Level 3- Total
Particulars FVIPL*  FVOCI** Amortisedcost  Total priceinactive  Significant Significant
markels observable unobservable
inputs inputs

Trade receivables - - 2215 2215 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 145,52 14552 - - - -
Other bank balance - - 12,157.30 12,157.30 - - - -
Other financial assels - - 55,665.10 53,663.10 - - - -
Total Financial assets - - 67.990.07 67,990.07 - - - -
Borrowings 62,216.18 62,216.18 - - = B
Trade payable 342510 342510 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 0.77 0.77 - - - -
Total Financial liabilities - - 65,042.05 65,642.05 - - = -

*FVTPL= Fair value through profit and loss

“FVOCT = Fair value through other comprehensive income

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 category above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

There have been no transters between level 1 and level 2 during the vears.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value:

e Inputs included in Level 1 of Fair Value Hierarchy are based on prices quoted in stock exchange and/or NAV declared by the Funds.

e Inputs included in Level 2 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from banks and other recognised institutions such as FINMDA/FEDAL
@ Inputs included in Level 3 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued using acceptable valuation techniques such as Net Asset Value and/or Discounted Cash
Flow Method.

Note: All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are calegorised within the fair value hierarchy described as above, based on the
lowest tevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Financial instr risk manag) objectives and policies

The Company’s financial labililies comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other pavables, The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash

eauivalents and other receivables.
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company

is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are continucusly monitore and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties,

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the company’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments.
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B. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company
is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks, The company’s exposure and credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Other financial assets
This comprises mainly of construction asset receivable - Right for Annuity receivable from NHAL deposits with banks . Credit risk arising from these
construction assets Is limited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are NHAL

C. Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees ("Rs.”). The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

D. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because ol changes in market interest rates. The
Company is exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations in interest rates. Company’s borrowing includes unsecured loan taken loan from banks & the
Parent Company. Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities has been provided below:

Exposure to liquidity risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows:
& in Lakhs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 3,338.98 12,157.30
Financial liabilities » 2
Variable-rate instruments

Financial assets 54,101.70 35,663.10
Financial liabilities 55,321.37 62,216.18

Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
of floating rate financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points
interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures
outstanding as at that date, The year end balances are nol necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

Sensitivity analysis
i Lakhs
Particulars Impact on profit before tax
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Interest rate

- increase by 100 basis points (12.20) (63.51)
- decrease by 100 basis points 1220 63.51
E. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as tar as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incu rring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company invest in liquid mutual funds to meet the immediate obligations.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The tollowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted.
& i Lakhs

As at 31 March 2022 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
year years
Borrowings {incl. current maturities) 55,321.37 53,321.37 3.370.68 20,200.83 31,749.86
Trade pavables 98.21 98.21 98.21 - -
Other current financial liabilities 0.51 0.51 0.51 - -
Total 55,420.09 55,420.09 3,469.40 20,200.83 31,749.56
As at 31 March 2021 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5
vear years
Borrowings (incl. current maturities) 62,216.18 62,216.18 317473 17,024.00 42,017.45
Trade pavables 3,425.10 3425.10 342510 - -
Other current financial liabilities 0.77 0.77 0.77 - -

Total 65,612.05 65,642.05 6,600.60 17,024.00 42,017.45
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o

1

Capital managenent

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market contidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, to equity share holders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the regquirements of the financial
covenants. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing during the vear, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equily ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity, The Company’s policy is to heep the net debt to equity ratio below 3. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits.

£ Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total borrowings 55,321.37 62.210.18
Less: cash and cash equivalents 1,287.29 145.52
Adjusted net debt 54,034.08 62,070.66
Equity share capital 2,030.00 2,030.00
Other equity 6,097.21 3,606.83
Tatal equity 5127.21 7,636,583
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio b.65 813
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the vear ended and 2 in Lakhs.
Ratio 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current Ratio (in times) 342 263
{Current assets/ Current liabilities)
Debt Equity Ratio (in times) to251 217

{ Total Debt / Total Equity )

{Total Debt = Debt comprises of current borrowings{ including current maturities of long lerm borrowings), non current

borrowings and interest accrued on borrowings and excludes the unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding from the

holding company (G R Infraprajects Limited).

Total Equity {net worth) = Equity share capital+Other equity + unsecured borrowing taken from the hold ing company)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio {in times) Q.70 111
{ (Earning before interest and tax and depreciation)/{principal repayment of non-current borrowings (excluding repayment

of unsecured borrowing taken from the holding company) made during the pericd and finance costs) }

Return on equity ratio (%) 2% 643%
{Protil for the pericd or year [/ Net worth)
{Net Werth: Equity share capital+Other equily + unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding from the holding company)

Inventory turnover ratio ( in times) NIL NIL
{ Revenue from operation { annualised) / Average Inventory)

Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) 0.15 0.33
{ Revenue from operation { annualised) / Average accounl receivable)
(Average account receivable = Average trade receivables + average unbilled revenue)

Trade pavables turnover ratio (in times) 2.05 573
{ Purchases made during the vear { annualised) / Average account payable)

Net capital turnover ratio (in times} 0.98 1.62
{ Revenue from operation { annualised) /working capital)
{Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities)

Net profil ratio (%) 5.62% 7.90%
(Protit/({loss) tor the period/ Total Income)

Return on capital employed (%) 8.85% 11.48%

{Profit before intrest and taxes for the period or vear / Capital emploved)
(Capital emploved = Total assets - Current liabilities)

Return on Investment (%) 3.62% 7.90%
(Profit for the vear/ Total assets)
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Disclosure pursuant to Para 6 of Ind AS 115 for Service Concession A

mangements

£ in Lakls

Name of entity |Description of the arrangement

Significant terms of the arrangement

Annuity receivable from
concession grantor (including
Contract assets receivables)

The Company is formed as a special purpose
vehicle (SPV) to design, build, operate and
transfer basis,  ("DBOT Annuity"or " Hybrnid
Annuity 7} the project relating to Four Laning of]
Phagwara to Rupnagar Section from Km 0.000
(Design  Chainage 1 to km 80820 (Design
Chainage ) NH 3444 1n the State of Punjab

GR Phagwara
Expressway
Limuted

| Period of concession: 2017 - 2033

Remuneration : 40% dunng construchion penied and balance
half yearly annuity in 15 years as per concession agreement
Investment grant trom convession grantor ; No

Infrastructure return at the end of concession period - Yes

Investment and renewal obligations : Nil

Re-pricing dates : No

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation 1s determined ; NA
Premium payable to grantor : Nil

PCOD Date : 25-02-2020

COD Date : 20-05-2021

%n

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

| 408828 |
| UDAIPUR /
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29 Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

¥ i Lakdrs
A. Disaggregated revenue information Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i) Type of service rendered
Sale of services 840078 17.741.81
Total 8,490.78 17,741,581
ii} Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography
Indta 849078 i7.741.81
Qutside India - -
Total §,490.78 17,741.81
iii} Timing of Revenue recognition
Revenue trom goods and services transferred to customers at a point in hme - -
Revenue frem goods and services transferred to customers over time 8,4%0.78 17,741.81
Tatal 8,490.78 17,741.81
B. Conlract balances:
The following table provides information about recevables, contract assets and contract lalulities trom the contracts with customers, ¢ in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables
Opening balance 2215 21.35
Closing balance 69.73 2215
The increase / decrease in trade receivables 1s mamly due to increase / decrease in sales.
Annuity receivable from concession grantor (including Contract assels receivables)
Opening balance 55.659.22 53,052.9
Clesing balance 51,080.44 55,659.22

Contract assets/ financial assels (annuity recievable from concession grantor} are recogmised as per Appendix D to Ind AS 115, when the Company has an unconditional right to
receive cash or another financial assel from or at the direction of the grantor for the corstruction services

Contract liabilities

Opening balance - 74808
Clesing balance - -
Contract liabilities include advance from customers and transaction price allocated to pired service obligat
C. The amount of revenue recognized from ot Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Performance obligations satisfied in previous years J -
- Amounts included in contract kabilities at the beginning of the vear - 74B 0B

D. Performance obligation
i) Sales of Services:
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the assets 1s under control of customer and they simultaneously recerves and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company The Company recerved progressive payment toward provision of services

E. Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price: ¢in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue as per contracted price 8,490.78 17,261.45
Adjustments
Claims - -
Varnable consideration - performance benus - 480.30

Revenue from contract with customers §.450.78 17,741.81
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30 Earnings per share
< in Lakhs

Particulars Itef Note No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Face value per equity share {in Rs.) 10.00 1000
{a) Profit for the vear attributable o equity shareholders 49038 1,41851
by Number of equity shares at the beginning of the vear 2,03,00,000 2,03.00,000
{ch Equity shares issued during the year -
{d MNumber of equity shares al the end of the vear 2,03,00,000 2,03,00,000
te) Weighted average number of equity shares for calculabng bas:c EPS 2.03,00,000 2,03,00,000
i} Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS 2.03,00,000 2,03.00,000
Earnings Per Share (in Rs -

- Basic earning per share (a/e} 242 6.99

- Diluted earning per share {a/ 1} 242 699
Note:

Weighted average number of equily shares is the number of equity shares outstanding al the beginning of the year adpusted by the number of equity shares issusd during
the year mulliplied by the ime werghling factor. The ime weighting factor is the number of davs for which the spectfic shares are owtstanding as a proportion of total
number of days during the year.

31 Segment reporting

Basis for segmentation

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting”. the Company is primarily engaged 11 a business of civil construction and has no other primary
reportable segments. The Managing Direclor of the Company allocate the resources and assess the performance of the Company, thus he s the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business 4s a single segment, hence no te segment nieds to be disclosed.

Information about geographical areas
As the Company operates in India only, hence no separate geographical segment 1s disclosed,

Information about major customers
Revenue of Rs 8490 78 lakhs are derived from single customer (NHAI} which amounts to 10% or more of the Company's revenue

¥ in Lakhs
Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

32 Contingent liabilities and commitments

A Contingent liabilities (lo the extent not provided for)
(a} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(11 Indirect tax matters
() Direct tax matters
iy Cival matters

(b} Guarantees excluding financial guarantees :
Guarantees given lo third parties
Total -

B Commitmenls

{a} Other Commutments - 219442

33 The Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID-12 pandenuc on 1ts business operations, liquidity position and revoverability of its asset balances as al March 31,
2022 based on the internal and external sources of information uplo the date of approval of these audited standalone financial stat L Also, the manag, L does not
see any nisks in the Company’s ability to continue as a gowng concern and meeting 1ts liabilities as and when they fall due. The Company has adequate funds and/or
unutilized fund-based credit facilities available, to take care of any urgent requirement of funds. Accordingly, the Company believes that there 1s no matenal impact of
Covid 19 on these audited standalone financial statement. The final impact of COVID-19 may be ditterent from that estimated as at the date of approval of these audited

tandalone financial stalement and hence ent will continue to monitor any matenal changes to the future economic conditions,

34 Previous vear figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever consider nevessary
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